
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 24, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

City of 

“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to protect 
the community’s livable identity and scenic 

beauty through responsible growth planning 
and by providing accountable, accessible and 

efficient local government services. 
www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, 
Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin 

A. Flag Salute 

B. Roll Call:  Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Justin Evans, 
Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, 
Councilmember James Rackley, Councilmember Dan Swatman, and Councilmember 
Tom Watson. 

C. Agenda Modifications: 

D. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations: 

1. Announcements: None.

2. Appointments: None.

3. Presentations:

a. Presentation: AB16-67 – Stormwater Pollution Calendar Art Contest Award
Ceremony.

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:

A. Public Hearings: 

1. AB16-70 – Resolution 2532 – Fennel Creek Sewer Lift Station Assessment
Reimbursement Area Formation.

Citizens are invited to present their views on specific issues being considered by 
Council. A public hearing sign-in sheet is available at the information table. Those 
who do not sign up will be given opportunity to speak only if time allows. Comments 
are limited to 5 minutes per individual or 10 minutes for the designated 
representative of a group. 

B. Citizen Comments:  
Citizens are encouraged to attend and participate at all Council Meetings. You may 
address the Mayor and City Council on matters of City business, or over which the City 
has authority, for up to 5 minutes. Sign-up is not required. When recognized by the 
Mayor, please state your name and address for the official record. Designated 
representatives recognized by the chair who are speaking on behalf of a group may 
have a total of 10 minutes to speak. Each citizen is allowed to speak only once during 
Citizen Comments.  

p. 13

p. 5

Agenda Packet p. 1 of 178

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


C. Correspondence 

III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:
A. Finance Committee 

B. Community Development Committee 

C. Economic Development Committee 

D. Public Safety Committee 

E. Other Reports 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:
The items listed below may be acted upon by a single motion and second of the City Council.
By simple request to the Chair, any Councilmember may remove items from the Consent
Agenda for separate consideration after the adoption of the remainder of the Consent
Agenda items.

A. Approval of Corrected Minutes: May 3, 2016 Workshop, and May 10, 2016 
Meeting. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers:  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #73687-73721 (including wire transfer number’s 
20160501, 20160502, and 20160503) in the amount of $663,578.94. 
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #73721-73827 (including wire transfer number 
20160505) in the amount of $2,467,065.13; and Accounts Payable wire transfer 
#201605171 in the amount of $38,065.69 for p-card purchases. 

C. Approval of Payroll: May 1st-15th, 2016 for checks #32971-32984 including Direct 
Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $ 526,076.33 

D. AB16-68 – Ordinance D16-68 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington Amending Chapter 2.04 Of The Bonney 
Lake Municipal Code And Ordinance No. 1474 Relating To Regular Council Meeting 
Times. 

E. AB16-69 – Resolution 2531 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Resolution No. 2523 
Establishing Regular Meeting Dates And Times For Council Standing Committees. 

F. AB16-71 – Resolution 2533 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing An Agreement With Nicholas 
Markham For 18th Street East Water Extension. 

G. AB16-74 – Resolution 2536 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Wholesale Water Supply 
Agreement With The City Of Tacoma, Department Of Public Utilities-Water Division. 

p. 21

p. 27

p. 31

p. 35

p. 47

Agenda Packet p. 2 of 178



V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

A. AB16-78 – Resolution 2538 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Awarding the 186th Corridor Improvement 
Project to Sanders General Construction. 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

A. AB16-66 - Resolution 2530 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing Myers Road South Overlay 
Project Design by KPG Engineering. 

B. AB16-72 – Resolution 2534 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Awarding the Fennel Creek Sewer Lift 
Station Project to Award Construction, Inc. 

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES:  None.

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES:
A. AB16-73 – Resolution 2535 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 

Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Lease Agreement With 
Bennett Music Studios, LLC For The Former City Hall Annex Building. 

B. AB16-75 – A Motion Appointing Voting Delegates to the 2016 AWC Annual 
Conference Business Meeting. 

X. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION:  
Pursuant to RCW 42.30, the City Council may hold an executive or closed session. The topic(s) 
and duration will be announced prior to the session. 

XI. ADJOURNMENT

For citizens with disabilities requesting translators or adaptive equipment for communication 
purposes, the City requests notification as early as possible prior to the meeting regarding the type of 

service or equipment needed. 

THE COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON 
THIS AGENDA. 

p. 75

p. 83

p. 151

p. 159

p. 177

Agenda Packet p. 3 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 4 of 178



City of Bonney Lake 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department / Staff Member: Meeting/Workshop Date: Agenda Bill Number: 

PW / Andrew Fonda  24 May 2016 AB16-67 
Agenda Item Type: Ordinance/Resolution Number: Councilmember Sponsor: 

Presentation 

Agenda Subject:  2016 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Art Contest Award Ceremony 

Full Title/Motion:  N/A 

Administrative Recommendation: 

Background Summary:  The City of Bonney Lake’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Phase II Municipal Stormwater Permit is a federal permit authorized under the Federal Clean Water Act of 1972 
that regulates stormwater discharges to waters of the State. One of the major permit requirements is to create and 
implement a Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) which addresses five required program elements 
including Public Education & Outreach.  As a Stormwater Management Program Public Education & Outreach 
event, the City invited local K-12 students to participate in an art contest depicting stormwater pollution prevention 
and water conservation messages. Two winning drawings from each of the six messages will be utilized to develop 
a calendar to promote stormwater pollution prevention and water conservation practices.  To encourage student 
participation, the City will award a $50 cash prize to each of the twelve winning artists.  Each winning artist will be 
recognized at an award ceremony.   
Attachments: 2016 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Art Contest Winners 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance Fund Source 

$3,500 $3,500 $600 $2,900 General 

X Utilities 

Other 

Budget Explanation:      415.000.038.538.10.49.09 – Stormwater Admin Other Miscellaneous 
Revenue: Stormwater O&M Rates 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee: Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember 

Committee Date: Councilmember 

Councilmember 

Forwarded to: Consent Agenda: Yes  No 

Commission/Board Review: Arts Commission 4/27/2016 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s): 
5/24/2016 

Tabled to: 

APPROVALS 
Director: Mayor: Date Reviewed by 

City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 5 of 178



2016 Stormwater Pollution Prevention / Water Conservation Art Contest Winners 

 

Iris Rogel, Victor Falls Elementary School, Grade 5  

Pet Waste Disposal 

 

 

 

                                                                                           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Avery Blake, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 8 

Pet Waste Disposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Packet p. 6 of 178



 

Bailey Saultman, Lakeridge Middle School, Grade 6 

Pollution/Illegal Dumping Reporting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Makenna Parmer, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 7 

Pollution/Illegal Dumping Reporting  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 7 of 178



Olivia Beringer, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 8 

Used Oil Recycling 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Taylor Swensen, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 7 

Used Oil Recycling 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 8 of 178



Isaac Jueschke, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 6 

Water Conservation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Serena Chun, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 8 

Water Conservation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 9 of 178



Elizabeth O’Brien, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 8 

Household Hazardous Waste Disposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kayla Chapman, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 6 

Household Hazardous Waste Disposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 10 of 178



Edie Markquart, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 6 

Friendly Vehicle Washing 

Matthew Wilhite, Mountain View Middle School, Grade 8 

Friendly Vehicle Washing 

Agenda Packet p. 11 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 12 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
PW / GRIGSBY 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-70 

Agenda Item Type: 
Public Hearing 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2532 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

Agenda Subject:  Public Hearing - Fennel Creek Sewer Lift Station Assessment Reimbursement Area 
Formation 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Approving Formation Of An Assessment Reimbursement Area For The Fennel Creek Sewer 
Lift Station. 

Administrative Recommendation:  Recommend Approval 

Background Summary:  The City is constructing a new sewer lift station on 192nd Ave. This lift station 
will immediately benefit the commercial developments adjacent to this LS including the Skystone 
Apartments and City property. Obtaining partial reimbursement to the sewer fund from these two 
commercial properties is proposed through the formation of this Assessment Reimbursement Area 
(ARA). The Latecomer Fee (LF) established by formation of this ARA must be based on the proportional 
share of costs for each property that could benefit from this lift station. The benefitting service area does 
include single family housing in Kelley Glade and Cedar View. However, payment of this LF is not 
required by single family homes until connection occurs to the City sewer system. Connection cannot 
occur until the City extends sewer lines to these two sub-divisions from 192nd Avenue. Currently, there is 
no project funded to extend this sewer line. Additionally, the home's septic system must fail or the house 
must be sold in order to require this connection. A public meeting was held on 12 May and a City Council 
Hearing is planned for 24 May to discuss this ARA and LF.  
Attachments:  Resolution 2532, ARA Map, Project Cost Estimate, Preliminary LF Estimate 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 17 May 2016 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis 
Councilmember Randy McKibbin 
Councilmember Dan Swatman 

Forward to: Consent Agenda:  Yes   No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  7 June 2016 Public Hearing Date(s): 5/24/2016 
Meeting Date(s): 14 June 2016 Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
D. L. GRIGSBY, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 13 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 14 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2532 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING FORMATION 
OF AN ASSESSMENT REIMBURSEMENT AREA FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE FENNEL CREEK SEWER LIFT 
STATION. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Sewer Comprehensive Plan identifies the necessity 

of a future sewer lift station to serve the area surrounding this lift station site; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the 2015 – 2016 biennial budget that 
included funding for Construction of the Fennel Creek Lift Station in the Sewer Capital 
Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City opened bids on May 4, 2016 for the Fennel Creek Lift 
Station Construction and the low bidder was determined to be Award Construction, Inc. 
for the amount of $1,811,429.70 which includes tax; and 

 
WHEREAS, this sewer lift station will benefit both commercial and residential 

areas of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 35.91.060 and BLMC 13.16.050 authorize the City to create 

an assessment reimbursement area on its own initiative, finance all of the costs associated 
with the construction or improvement, and become the sole beneficiary of 
reimbursements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to obtain reimbursement for the design and 

construction costs of this new sewer lift station by establishing a city-initiated sewer 
Assessment Reimbursement Area (ARA).  

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

That the City of Bonney Lake Council does hereby authorize formation of this 
Assessment Reimbursement Area.  

 
PASSED by the City Council this 14th day of June, 2016. 

 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

Agenda Packet p. 15 of 178



AUTHENTICATED: 
 
       
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 16 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 17 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 18 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 19 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 20 of 178



 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. Call to Order – Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

II. Roll Call:  Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the roll.  In 
addition to Mayor Johnson, elected officials attending were Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin, 
Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Katrina Minton-
Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, Councilmember Dan Swatman, and Councilmember Tom 
Watson. 

Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, Public Works Director Dan 
Grigsby, Chief Financial Officer Cherie Gibson, Community Development Director John 
Vodopich, Assistant Chief of Police Kurt Alfano, City Attorney Kathleen Haggard, Senior 
Planner Jason Sullivan, Associate Planner Ryan Harriman, Administrative Services Director/City 
Clerk Harwood Edvalson, and Administrative Specialist II Renee Cameron. 
 

III. Agenda Items:  

A. Council Open Discussion. 
 
White River Families First Coalition Meeting.  Councilmember Lewis said he attended the 
White River Families First Coalition Meeting at the Buckley Fire Station on April 25, 2016.  
He said Megan Rhodes from White River School District was the guest speaker regarding the 
healthy young survey data report which discussed current marijuana use percentages and the 
trend of use of 6th grade, 8th grade, 10th grade, and 12th grade students who were interviewed 
for the study.  Councilmember Lewis noted the percentage difference of students where their 
community have a marijuana dispensary located within their community.  He said that he 
believes students follow what they see their parents do, as they believe it to be acceptable.  
He also reported on the consumption of alcohol with students and the percentages in Buckley 
compared to state percentages.  Councilmember Watson said he hopes to receive the same 
report at the upcoming Sumner Families First Coalition meeting. 
 
Pierce County Skills Center Mock Interviews.  Councilmember Evans said he visited the 
Pierce County Skills Center to participate with the juniors and seniors who are in the 
composites and machining programs for career days.  He said it was a great opportunity with 
great programs at a great facility.  He said upon completion of the program, students receive a 
Boeing Core Certificate.  He said they also have law, firefighting, construction, and culinary 
programs.  Councilmember Lewis gave kudos to Pierce County for growth for youth and 
hope for the future.  Councilmember Rackley said Pierce County has offered great tech 
training for students who want to learn certain trades.  Councilmember Minton-Davis asked 
about transportation for students to these programs.  Councilmember Evans said there were 
school buses at the facility, and Councilmember Lewis said that the schools are aware of the 
programs and will organize transportation, if enough students were interested in attending. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
WORKSHOP 

 

May 3, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to  
protect the community’s livable identity and 
scenic beauty through responsible growth 
planning and by providing accountable,  

accessible and efficient local government 
services. 

 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Agenda Packet p. 21 of 178

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


Graffiti Clean-Up.  Councilmember Watson said he noticed some graffiti at Ken Simmons 
Park that he would like to see cleaned up.  Mayor Johnson said he will have staff look into it.  
Councilmember Evans said a citizen spoke with him during his campaign that said they have 
noticed that the City has done a good job cleaning up the graffiti around the City. 
 
Council Meeting Times/Finance Committee Time Change.  Councilmember Watson asked 
about whether there would be Council consensus to change the Council Meetings to 6:00 
p.m. instead of 7:00 p.m.  After some discussion Council consensus was to change the 
Council Meeting times to 6:00 p.m.  City Attorney Haggard said the City must provide 
adequate notice so citizens know of the change.  She will confirm the number of required 
readings of proposed ordinance and council meeting time change.  Councilmember Lewis 
recommended that the proposed Council meeting time change be noted in the Courier Herald 
Bonney Lake Reporter Newsletter.  A proposed ordinance to revise the Bonney Lake 
Municipal Code to change the Council meeting time from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. will be 
forthcoming.  There will also be a proposed ordinance to change the Finance Committee to 
change the Finance Committee meeting time from 5:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Director Edvalson 
and City Attorney Haggard advised that two readings of the proposed ordinance regarding the 
time change are required. 
 
Senior Center Bus.  Councilmember Watson asked about the vicinity in which our Senior 
Center bus travels, as well as fees charged to seniors who are not within City limits.  He said 
as the County use to help pay for transportation for the seniors to the Senior Center and he 
proposed that the City contact Pierce County again regarding contributing to the costs of 
transporting the seniors.  Director Edvalson and Chief Financial Officer Gibson said they will 
confirm where and how the Sumner seniors pay for their transport to the Senior Center. 
 
Historical Museum.  Mayor Johnson said he would like Council to think about options 
available for a Historical Museum and creating a community campus.  It would include the 
Senior Center, Parks, Greater Bonney Lake Historical Social, rentable conference rooms, the 
Art Commission, the Chamber of Commerce, the Lions Club, and the Food Bank.  He said it 
needs to be a critical area for the community and wants Council to start thinking about the 
future use of the Old City Hall/Public Works Center.  He would like Council to be prepared 
for future discussion.  Councilmember Minton-Davis said she thought it was a great idea and 
way to provide a variety of classes or programs a community campus.  Senior Planner Jason 
Sullivan reminded Council about the “Help Shape the Future of Bonney Lake Center 
Workshop” regarding the Lake Tapps area that is scheduled to be held on May 11, 2016 from 
6:00 p.m.-8:00 p.m. at the Justice & Municipal Center.  Deputy Mayor McKibbin said he 
thought it seems like a good idea to have discussion at the May 11th Center Workshop 
meeting.  Mayor Johnson said the key is to get all of the groups to work together and be a 
very successful undertaking for the community. 

 
B. Review of Draft Minutes: April 19, 2016 Workshop and April 26, 2016 Meeting Draft 

Minutes. 
 
The minutes were forwarded to the May 10, 2016 Meeting for action, with minor corrections. 
 

C. Discussion: AB16-24 – Ordinance No. D16-24 – Itinerant Vendor Ordinance. 
 
Associate Planner Ryan Harriman summarized the agenda bill and the proposed ordinance, 
which would amend the zoning code to establish regulatory authority and right to operate 
itinerant vending within the City.  Council had questions regarding the difference between 

Agenda Packet p. 22 of 178



peddler’s licenses and the temporary permits that would be issued for itinerant venders that 
are either mobile venders or stationary venders.  Mr. Harriman and Senior Planner addressed 
Council and the Mayor’s questions regarding locations of itinerant vendors, and sales tax 
revenue that is reported to the State.  Mr. Harriman advised that temporary permits are issued 
for two years.  Community Development Director Vodopich reminded Council that a 
business license is only required if you are conducting permitted activity.  The Mayor and the 
Council’s main concern was the issue with peddlers and asked if the City should make a 
change to require them to have a temporary permit.  Councilmember Minton-Davis asked Mr. 
Sullivan about what portions of the proposed ordinance he thinks Council should consider.  
He advised that the ordinance could be reduced dramatically.  Council consensus was for 
staff to revise the proposed ordinance and bring it back to Council for further review and 
consideration. 
 

D. Discussion:  AB16-51 – Ordinance D16-51 - Increasing the Sumner School District Impact 
Fee. 
 
Senior Planner Jason Sullivan summarized the agenda bill and the proposed ordinance, which 
would increase school impact fees by $60 for single-family and $30 for multi-family. The 
fees are currently $3,270 for single-family and $1,725 for multi-family. The proposed fees 
are $3,330 for single-family and $1,755 for multi-family. Pierce County has raised their rates 
for 2016 to $3,330 for single-family and $1,755 for multi-family. The Sumner School District 
has requested that the City update the impact fees in amounts not less than Pierce County's 
fees for 2016.  Councilmember Watson asked why, with the recent approved bond, an 
increase is being requested.  Sumner School District Education Support Services Officer 
Steve Sjolund, and Sumner School District’s legal counsel Mary Urback, addressed 
Councilmember Watson’s questions regarding the District’s use of the school impact fees 
versus the funds and expenses from the recently approved school bond.  Councilmember 
Rackley said he supports the increase, but believes it should be more as the District needs the 
money.  This item was forwarded to the May 10, 2016 Meeting for action. 

 
IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None. 

V. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Johnson adjourned the Workshop at 6:37 p.m. 

 
 

  

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

Items presented to Council for the May 3, 2016 Workshop: 
 

• Councilmember Justin Evans – Building Beyond the Walls – Free Hands-On Construction Skills 
Training. 

 
Note: Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are 

on file with the City Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the 
corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on the city website and on file with the City 
Clerk. 

Agenda Packet p. 23 of 178



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

May 10, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

 
MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to protect 
the community’s livable identity and scenic 

beauty through responsible growth planning 
and by providing accountable, accessible and 

efficient local government services. 
www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin called the Meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m.  

A. Flag Salute: Deputy Mayor McKibbin led the audience in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

B. Roll Call: Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called 
the roll. In addition to Deputy Mayor McKibbin, elected officials attending were 
Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember 
Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, Councilmember Dan 
Swatman, and Councilmember Tom Watson. Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. was absent. 

Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, 
Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson, Police Chief 
Dana Powers, Public Works Director Dan Grigsby, City Attorney Kathleen 
Haggard, and Deputy City Clerk Susan Haigh. 

C. Agenda Modifications: None. 

D. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:  

1. Announcements: None. 

2. Appointments: None. 

3. Presentations: None. 
 

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE: 

A. Public Hearings: None. 

B. Citizen Comments:  
Paul Kulvi, 7711 Locust Ave E, Bonney Lake, spoke about transgender restroom 
policies at Target stores.  

C. Correspondence: None. 
 

Agenda Packet p. 24 of 178

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

A. Finance Committee: Deputy Mayor McKibbin said the May 10th Finance 
Committee meeting was cancelled. 

B. Community Development Committee: Councilmember Lewis said the Committee 
met on May 3, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. and forwarded four items to the current agenda 
as Consent Agenda items. 

C. Economic Development Committee: Councilmember Minton-Davis said the 
Committee met at 4:00 p.m. earlier in the day and discussed several items, but did 
not move anything forward for Council consideration. 

D. Public Safety Committee: Councilmember Watson said the Committee has not 
met since the last Council meeting. 

E. Other Reports: None. 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:   

A. Approval of Minutes: April 19, 2016 Workshop and April 26, 2016 Meeting. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers: Accounts 
Payable checks/vouchers #73616-73644 (including wire transfer numbers 
4122016, and 20160405) in the amount of $329,255.20.  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #73645-73685 (including wire transfer number 
17937572) in the amount of $82,372.28.  
VOIDS: 73625; 73334 – replaced with check #73686. 

C. Approval of Payroll: April 16th-31st 2016 for checks #32953 – 32970 including 
Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $605,509.94.  
Correction for Payroll: April 1st-15th, 2016 for checks #32935 – 32952 
including Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $517,313.29 $ 517,539.12.  

D. AB16-51 – Ordinance D16-51 – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending Chapter 19.08 Of The 
Bonney Lake Municipal Code And Ordinance No. 1511 Relating To School 
Impact Fees. 

E. AB16-59 – Resolution 2525 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Sewer Developer’s 
Agreement With Kelly Kahne For The Eastown Kahne Extension. 

F. AB16-64 – Resolution 2528 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing Water And Sewer 
Developer’s Extension Agreements With Oakridge Homes For The Stone Creek 
Long Plat. 

Agenda Packet p. 25 of 178



G. AB16-45 – A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce 
County, Washington, To Accept As Complete SR410 Pedestrian Improvements 
Project With WHH Nisqually Federal Services, LLC.  

H. AB16-63 – A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce 
County, Washington, To Accept As Complete The Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation- 
2015 Project With NWCW, LLC. 

Councilmember Watson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Councilmember Evans seconded the motion.  

Consent Agenda approved 6 – 1. 
Deputy Mayor Swatman voted no. 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 
 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 
 

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  
 

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES:  None. 
 

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES: None. 
 

X. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION: None. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT: 

At 6:05 p.m. Councilmember Rackley moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilmember Watson seconded the motion.  

Motion approved 7 – 0. 
   

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

 
Items presented to Council at the May 10, 2016 Meeting: None.  
 
Note:   Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the City 

Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on 
the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

Agenda Packet p. 26 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Executive / Don Morrison 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-68 

Agenda Item Type: 
Ordinance 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
D16-68 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Watson 

 

Agenda Subject:  Council Meeting Start Times 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Amending BLMC 2.04.080 And Ordinance 1474, Changing The Time Of Regular Council 
Meetings. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  It has been proposed to change the meeting start time of the regular council 
meetings from 7:00pm to 6:00pm and the start time of the Council Workshops from 5:30pm to 6:00pm.  

Attachments:  Ordinance D16-18 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: NA 
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review:            

Date:       
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember          
Councilmember          
Councilmember          

 Forward to:         Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  17 May 2016 Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
      

Mayor: 
      

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

      
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 27 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 28 of 178



ORDINANCE NO. D16-68 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
SECTIONS 2.04.080 AND 2.04.120 OF THE BONNEY LAKE 
MUNICIPAL CODE AND ORDINANCE NO. 1474 RELATING TO 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING TIMES. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined to change the starting time of their 
regular meeting;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  BLMC Sections 2.04.080 and 2.04.120 are hereby amended to read as 
follows:  

 
2.04.080 Regular council meetings.  The council shall meet on the second and 
fourth Tuesday of each month at 67:00 p.m. The meeting shall adjourn no later 
than 910:00 p.m. To continue past this time of adjournment, a council majority 
must concur. When a council meeting falls on a holiday, the council may 
determine an alternate day for the meeting or cancel the meeting. The council may 
reschedule regular meetings to a different date or time by motion. The location of 
the meetings shall be the council chambers at the Justice and Municipal Center, 
unless specified otherwise by a majority vote of the council. All regular and 
special meetings shall be public. 

If possible, only one or two major topics (defined as issues of high interest, 
controversial or those which would take an extraordinary amount of city council 
meeting time) will be scheduled per meeting.  

2.04.120 Council workshops.  

The council shall meet on the first and third Tuesday of each month at 6:00 5:30 
p.m. to review forthcoming agenda issues, review reports on current programs or 
projects, receive other similar information from city department heads or conduct 
procedure workshops. Decisions/votes on the issues discussed at workshops will 
generally be scheduled for a regular or special council meeting, but the council 
may take action at a workshop upon approval of a majority vote of the 
councilmembers present. Workshops shall have a council open discussion period 
generally at the beginning of the meetings to discuss issues of concern unless 
waived by the council. Council workshops shall be open to the public.  

  

Agenda Packet p. 29 of 178



 
Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force five (5) days from and 

after its passage, approval and publication, as required by law.  The new meeting and 
workshop times shall begin at the first meeting after July 1, 2016. 

 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor this ____ day of 

_________________, 2016.  
 
 

_________________________________ 
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 

Agenda Packet p. 30 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Executive / Don Morrison 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-69 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2531 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Watson 

Agenda Subject:  Regular Meeting Dates And Times For Council Standing Committees 

Full Title/Motion:   A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Amending Resolution 2523 Changing The Starting Time Of The Finance Committee And 
The Community Development Committee Meeting. 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 

Background Summary:  The Council recently determined to change the starting time of its regular 
council meeting, necessitating a change in the starting time of the Finance Committee meeting so that 
there is sufficient time to conduct Finance Committee business in advance of the start of the regular 
council meeting which meets the same day as the Finance Committee. Council has also determined 
to change the starting time of the CDC.   
Attachments:  Resolution No. 2531 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: NA 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: 

Date: 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember 

Councilmember 

Councilmember 

Forward to: Consent Agenda:  Yes   No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  17 May, 2016 Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: Mayor: Date Reviewed  

by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 31 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 32 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2531 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2523 ESTABLISHING 
REGULAR MEETING DATES AND TIMES FOR 
COUNCIL STANDING COMMITTEES. 

 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2.04.910 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code provides that the 

regular meeting times and dates of all standing committees of the City Council shall be 
established by resolution, and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council has recently changed the starting time of its regular council 

meeting, necessitating a change in the starting time of the Finance Committee meeting;   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED; The City Council of the City of Bonney 
Lake, Washington does hereby establish regular meeting dates and times for standing Council 
committees as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Finance Committee.  The Finance Committee will regularly meet on the 

second and fourth Tuesdays of the month at 5:00 5:30 p.m. when there is business to conduct; 
and 

 
Section 2.  Public Safety Committee.  The Public Safety Committee will regularly meet 

on the fourth Tuesday of the month at 4:00 p.m. when there is business to conduct; and 
 
Section 3.  Community Development Committee.  The Community Development 

Committee (CDC) will regularly meet on the first and third Tuesdays of the month at 4:30 4:00 
p.m. when there is business to conduct; and 

 
Section 4.  Economic Development Committee.  The Economic Development 

Committee (EDC) will regularly meet on the second Tuesday of the month at 4:00 p.m. when 
there is business to conduct. 

 
Section 5.  Meeting Places.  The agenda and public notice of each of the standing 

Council committees shall include the meeting place, including the building and specific meeting 
room. 

 
PASSED by the City Council this ___ day of ______________, 2016. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

Agenda Packet p. 33 of 178



 
 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
       
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 

Agenda Packet p. 34 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
CD / Cole Elliott 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-71 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2533 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

Agenda Subject:  Nicholas Markham - 18th Street E Water Developer's Agreement 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Authorizing A Water Developers Extension Agreement Between Nicholas Markham And 
The City Of Bonney Lake. 

Administrative Recommendation: 

Background Summary:  Mr. Nicholas Markham has requested the City provide water and fire 
protection services for his proposed residence located along 18th Street East just east of 214th Avenue 
East. 
Attachments:  Vicinity Map 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

N/A 
Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 17 May 2016 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis 

Randy McKibbin Deputy Mayor 

Councilmember Dan Swatman 
Forward to: Consent Agenda:  Yes   No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
John Vodopich 

Mayor: Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 35 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 36 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 37 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 38 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 39 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 40 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 41 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 42 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 43 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 44 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 45 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 46 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department/Staff Contact: 
PW / GRIGSBY 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-74 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2536 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

 

Agenda Subject:  Wholesale Water Supply Agreement with the City of Tacoma, Department of Public 
Utilities-Water Division 
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Approving Adoption Of A Wholesale Water Supply Agreement With The City Of Tacoma, 
Department Of Public Utilities-Water Division. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Recommend Approval  
 

Background Summary:  The City of Bonney Lake entered into the first Water Supply Agreement with 
TPU in 2005 for 2 MGD. The City has purchased an additional TPU 2 MGD water supply through an 
Agreement with Cascade Water Alliance. This agreement consolidates these two purchases into one 
Water Supply for 4 MGD (peak demand) with TPU.  
Attachments:  Resolution 2536, TPU Water Supply Agreement 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation:       
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development  

Date: 17 May 2016 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis    
Councilmember Randy McKibbin    
Councilmember Dan Swatman    

 Forward to:         Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):  24 May 2016 Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
D. L. Grigsby, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

      
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 47 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 48 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2536 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING A WHOLESALE 
WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TACOMA, 
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES-WATER DIVISION. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bonney Lake entered into the first Water Supply Agreement 

with the Tacoma Public Utilities (TPU) department in 2005 for a 2 MGD (Peak Demand) 
water supply; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has purchased an additional TPU 2 MGD water supply through 

an Agreement with Cascade Water Alliance; and 
 
WHEREAS, TPU requests that a single Water Supply Agreement be created that 

consolidates these two water supply purchases into one Water Supply Agreement.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 

LAKE, WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The City of Bonney Lake Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the attached Water 

Supply Agreement.  
 
PASSED by the City Council this 24th day of May, 2016. 

 
 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
       
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 49 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 50 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 51 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 52 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 53 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 54 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 55 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 56 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 57 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 58 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 59 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 60 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 61 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 62 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 63 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 64 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 65 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 66 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 67 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 68 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 69 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 70 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 71 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 72 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 73 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 74 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department/Staff Contact: 
PW / John Woodcock 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-78 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2538 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Randy McKibbin 

 

Agenda Subject:  Award 186th Corridor Improvements Project to Sanders General Construction LLC. 
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Award The 186th Corridor Improvements Project To Sanders General Construction LLC.. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:        
 

Background Summary:  On May 18, 2016 the Public Works Department opened bids for the 186th 
Corridor Improvement Project. Three (3) bids were received, the low responsible bidder was Sanders 
General Construction LCC at $1,138,457.76. The Engineer's Estimate was $948,655. This project also 
includes a Schedule 74 agreement with  Puget Sound Energy to underground the dry utilities. The cost 
estimate from PSE is $90,360 in which 40% ($36,144) will be attributed to the city's expense within this 
budget. Street lighting costs for seven (7) LED lights are $45,098.  
Attachments:  Resolution 2538, Bid Tabs,Contract, Map 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

$2,700,000 
$105,000 

Total = $2,805,000 

Current Balance 
$1,265,080 
$105,000 

$1,370,080 

Required Expenditure 
$1,265,080 
$105,000 

$1,370,080 

Budget Balance 
$0 
$0 
$0 
 

Fund Source 
 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: Street 301.034.032.595.30.63.01 - Construction, Downtown 186th Ave. Corridor 
($2,700,000) 
Street Operations 301.000.042.595.61.63.10 - Sidewalk Improvements ($105,000) 
Construction contract amount: $1,138,457.76 plus 8.8% Contingency: $100,380.24 plus 4.4% 
Construction Engineering: $50,000 plus Sch 74: $36,144 plus Street lights: $45,098 = Total:$1,370,080 
Revenue: Renwood Mitigation Funds, Transportation Impact Fees, 186th Easement Release 
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Finance Committee 

Date: 24 May 2016 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Randy McKibbin    
Councilmember Dan Swatman    
Councilmember Tom Watson    

 Forward to:         Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
Dan Grigsby, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

      
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 75 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 76 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2538 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, WASHINGTON, AWARDING THE 186TH 
CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT TO SANDERS 
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION LLC. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution 2303 on 14 May 2013 for a 
Developer Agreement with the Renwood LLC.  This agreement requires offsite street 
improvements to mitigate the impact of the Renwood development on surrounding streets; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 15th, 2013 the CDC met and directed staff to submit a 
design effort of 30% for two options, the 186th Ave., 88th Ave., and 188th Ave. 
improvement and the 186th Ave. Extension to Veterans Memorial Drive; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2014 the City Council reviewed the findings of the 30% 
design effort that quantified the costs to purchase right of way, underground utilities, and 
construct the improvements.  Council provided direction to implement these 
improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 12, 2014 the City Council authorized the Mayor to sign 
the 100% design contract with KPG Engineering in the amount of $283,523; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Schedule 74 agreement with 

Puget Sound Energy per Resolution 2408 on August 12, 2014 to place underground 
the distribution utilities within this project area for $90,360.  The city’s share (40%) 
of the conversion process from aerial to underground is estimated at $36,144; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City opened bids on May 18, 2016 and has determined Sanders 

General Construction LLC, the apparent low bidder to be “responsive” in their bid 
submittal and a “responsible” contractor therefore making them the approved low bidder 
for $1,138,457.76;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 

LAKE, WASHINGTON HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  
 
That the City of Bonney Lake Council does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign the 

attached contract with Sanders General Construction LLC in the amount of $1,138,457.76 
which includes tax. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Bonney Lake Council does 

hereby authorize 8.8% for Construction Contingency in the amount of $100,380.24 as well 
as 4.4% for Construction Engineering in the amount of $50,000 based on the contract bid 
amount. 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 77 of 178



 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 24th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
      
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
      
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 78 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 79 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 80 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 81 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 82 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
PW / John Woodcock 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-66 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2530 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Dan Swatman 

Agenda Subject:  Authorize Myers Road South Overlay Project Design by KPG Engineering 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Authorizing Myers Road South Overlay Project Design By Kpg Engineering. 

Administrative Recommendation: 

Background Summary:  The City was awarded PSRC grant monies from the Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) contingency funds in March of 2016 totalling up to $441,150 for the overlay of Myers 
Road from SR 410 to 81st Street E. The design (PE) portion of the effort will be $60,809 of the total grant 
amount. The City's contribution will be 13.5% of the amount expended which will be $8,209.21. Total 
estimated impact to the general fund when 2016 construction costs are included will be around $59,555 
(13.5% of $441,150). A 2016 budget adjustment will be needed for design and construction. 
Attachments:  Contract, Resolution, Map 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

$0 
Current Balance 

$0 
Required Expenditure 

$8,209.21 
Budget Balance 

$0 
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: Will need budget adjustment later in 2016 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 17 May 2016 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis 

Dan Swatman Councilmember

Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin 
Forward to: Consent Agenda:  Yes   No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
Dan Grigsby, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 83 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 84 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2530 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING MYERS ROAD 
SOUTH OVERLAY PROJECT DESIGN BY KPG ENGINEERING. 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department submitted the Myers Road South 

Overlay project to the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) Surface Treatment Program 
(STP) in the summer of 2015 for potential grant funding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department received PSRC STP contingency 

funding for the overlay pavement of Myers Road from SR 410 to 81st Street E in March of 
2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, Public Works staff has completed and submitted the State 

Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) forms to Pierce County for the inclusion of 
the Myers Road South Overlay Project to the STIP and is awaiting imminent approval; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has signed the Local Agency Agreement with WSDOT to 
complete the Funding Package for the processing of the PSRC STP grant dollars; and 
 

WHEREAS, Public Works staff has completed the interview process and selected 
KPG Engineering as meeting the qualifications to design the Myers Road South Overlay 
Project; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, WASHINGTON HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

That the City of Bonney Lake Council does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign the 
attached design agreement with KPG Engineering for $60,809. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 24th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
_________________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 85 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 86 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 87 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 88 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 89 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 90 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 91 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 92 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 93 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 94 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 95 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 96 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 97 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 98 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 99 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 100 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 101 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 102 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 103 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 104 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 105 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 106 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 107 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 108 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 109 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 110 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 111 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 112 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 113 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 114 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 115 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 116 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 117 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 118 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 119 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 120 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 121 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 122 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 123 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 124 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 125 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 126 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 127 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 128 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 129 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 130 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 131 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 132 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 133 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 134 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 135 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 136 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 137 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 138 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 139 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 140 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 141 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 142 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 143 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 144 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 145 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 146 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 147 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 148 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 149 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 150 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Public Works / Doug Budzynski 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-72 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2534 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

Agenda Subject:  Notice of Award for Construction of Fennel Creek Lift Station. 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Authorizing A Contract With Award Construction For The Construction Effort Of The 
Fennel Creek Lift Station. 

Administrative Recommendation:  Recommend Approval 

Background Summary:  The City's Sewer Comprehensive Plan identifies the location of a future sewer 
lift station in the area of 192nd Ave and Sumner-Buckly Hwy.  This future lift station will support the 
immediate surrounding areas planned for development and those areas to the east of the site including 
Cedar View, Kelley Glade, and Swiss Park communities.  On October 27, 2015, City Council approved 
the design contract to Parametix.  Parametrix completed the design on schedule and a request for bids was 
advertised on April 13, 2016. The City received 5 bids and opened bids on May 4, 2016.  Award 
Construction was the apparent low bidder with a bid of $1,811,429.70.  The Engineer's Estimate is 
$1,816,485.20.  Staff has determined that Award Construction's submittal is consistent with the 
requirements of the contract provisions.  Sewer SDC funding is used for this project.  A 2016 budget 
adjustment is required.  A proposed Sewer Assessment Reimbursement Area (ARA) is being prepared to 
help reimbursement of this project.   
Attachments:  Resolution 2534, Contract, Bid Tabulation,Map 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 
$1,347,814.00 

Current Balance 
$1,092,771.10 

Required Expenditure 
$2,083,142.7 

Budget Balance 
($990,371.60) 

Fund Source 
 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: 402.105.035.594.35.63.05 Fennel Creek Lift Station. 
Construction Contract: $1,811,429.70 + 10% Contingency: $181,142.00 + 5% Permitting/Construction 
Services: $90,571.00 for Total = $2,083,142.70 
Revenue Source:  Sewer SDCs  

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 17 May 2016 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis 

Dan Swatman Councilmember

Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin 
Forward to: Consent Agenda:  Yes   No 

Commission/Board Review:   
Hearing Examiner Review: May 24, 2016 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: Mayor: Date Reviewed 

Agenda Packet p. 151 of 178



Dan Grigsby Neil Johnson Jr by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p. 152 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 153 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 154 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 155 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 156 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 157 of 178



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Agenda Packet p. 158 of 178



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department/Staff Contact: 
Executive / Don Morrison 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
24 May 2016 

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB16-73 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
2535 

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Lewis 

 

Agenda Subject:  Lease of the former City Hall Annex  
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Authorizing The Mayor To Sign A Lease With Bennett Music Studios, LLC For The 
Former City Hall Annex. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve 
 

Background Summary:  After considerable marketing, the City's leasing agent, Offenbecher 
Commercial has secured a mutual Letter of Intent to lease the former Annex building to Bennett Music 
Studio, LLC, effective June 1st.  The lease would be a five (5) year lease, with a mutual option to renew 
for another 5 years.  Rent would be $3,450.00 per month ($20.60/sf) for a total initial value of $207,000.  
Rates adjust each year according to changes in the CPI.  Tenant is responsibile for all utilities. The tenant 
is paying a reasonably high lease rate that is offset by an initial Tenant Improvement allowance of up to 
$40,180 (reducing net effective rental rate to $16.40/sf). Tenant is also required to personally guarantee 
the lease before the Mayor signs it.  (e.g. if the LLC defaults on the lease, City would have legal recourse 
against the guarantors of the music studio.)  
Attachments:  Resolution No. 2535; Lease 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

      
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation: Up to $40,180 from General Govt. CIP for TI Allowance  
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review:            

Date:       
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember          
Councilmember          
Councilmember          

 Forward to:         Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  May 17, 2016 Public Hearing Date(s):       
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
      

Mayor: 
      

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable) 

      
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 159 of 178



RESOLUTION NO. 2535 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING A LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH BENNETT MUSIC STUDIOS, LLC FOR THE 
FORMER CITY HALL ANNEX BUILDING.  

 

WHEREAS, the City has been in the process of attempting to lease the old City Hall 
Annex, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City through its agent has signed a Letter of Intent with Bennett Music 

Studios, LLC to lease the former City Hall Annex, subject to Council approval;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Bonney 

Lake, Washington, does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign the attached lease agreement with 
Bennett Music Studios, LLC to lease the former City Hall Annex building.  
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 24th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

      
Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 

 
AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson, City Clerk, MMC 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 

Agenda Packet p. 160 of 178



 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (“Lease”) is made and entered as of this   day of  

   , 2016 by and between the City of Bonney Lake (“Lessor”), and Bennett 
Music Studios, LLC, DBA Cappella Performing Arts Academy (“Lessee”). 
 
 FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the rents herein reserved and in further 
consideration of the mutual promises, terms and conditions hereof, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
1.0 PREMISES 
 

Lessor leases to Lessee the building located at 8720 Main Street E, Bonney Lake, 
Washington (the “Premises”), said building consisting of approximately 2009 usable 
square feet.  A legal description of the property is attached as Exhibit A. A sketch of the 
Premises is attached as Exhibit B. 

 
2.0 BUSINESS PURPOSES 
 

The Premises are to be used for the purpose of music office and studio space for the 
Lessee, and for no other business or purpose without the written consent of Lessor. 

 
3.0 TERM 
 

The term of this Lease shall be five years, commencing on June 1, 2016 (the 
“Commencement Date”), and terminating at midnight on August 31, 2022.  Payment of 
Rent according to paragraph 4.1 of this Lease shall commence on September 1, 2016.   
Thereafter, Lessee and Lessor shall have the mutual option to renew for one (1) five (5) 
year period following the initial lease term.  The Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold 
approval of the renewal.  Lessee shall provide written notice to the Lessor of its desire to 
renew at least six months prior to the renewal date. The rent for the second renewal 
period shall be subject to negotiations. 
 

Agenda Packet p. 161 of 178



4.0 RENT 
 

4.1 Lessee agrees to pay Lessor as rental for the Premises three thousand four 
hundred and fifty dollars ($3,450.00) per month plus escalations as provided 
herein.  Payment shall be due and payable on or before the first day of the month 
to Lessor at Lessor’s office, or at such other place as Lessor may hereafter 
designate.  Rent shall be based on a gross lease basis.  Lessee shall pay a security 
deposit equal to the first month’s rent due at lease execution. Lessee shall pay the 
first month’s lease payment at lease execution.  Rent shall be increased for each 
year of the lease by the change in the Seattle-Tacoma-Bremerton CPI-U or 2%, 
whichever is greater.  Daniel and Brittany Bennett (aka Bennett Music Studios, 
LLC) shall provide a written guarantee for payment of the rent in a form 
acceptable to the parties.  

 
5.0 UTILITIES AND SERVICES 
 

5.1 During the term of this Lease, Lessor shall furnish to the Premises and pay for 
water, sewer, and stormwater service.   

 
5.2 Lessee shall open and maintain accounts for electricity, gas, telecommunications, 

and solid waste service in its own name.  Lessee shall pay all utility charges in a 
timely manner and keep all accounts in good standing.  Lessee shall properly 
dispose and arrange for the weekly collection of all solid waste and recycling 
generated from the Premises. 

 
5.2 Lessor does not warrant that utilities or services will be free from interruption by 

reason of accident, repairs, alterations, Acts of God, improvements or action by 
third parties beyond its control.  No utility interruption shall be deemed an 
eviction or disturbance of Lessee, or render Lessor liable to Lessee for damages or 
rent abatement, or relieve Lessee from the full and complete performance of 
Lessee’s obligations under this Lease, provided however that, if such interruption 
is for a period in excess of five (5) days and is due to the negligence on the part of 
Lessor, Lessee shall be entitled to a proportionate rent abatement for such period 
in excess of five (5) days.   

 
6.0 CARE AND REPAIR OF PREMISES 
 

6.1 Lessor shall maintain the exterior, grounds and landscaping, structural, major 
mechanical, and utility systems of the buildings including, but not limited to, 
roofs, central heating supply and ventilation systems, electrical distribution 
systems (panels and associated wiring and raceway between the panel and the 
main switch gear), water, plumbing and sewer systems from the street to the 
building, in good and proper repair, and in accordance with all applicable statutes, 
and directions or regulations of the proper public authorities.  Lessor shall 
maintain and repair interior plumbing, except that Lessee shall keep all lavatories, 
sinks, and toilets in good order and repair.   

 

Agenda Packet p. 162 of 178



 6.2 Lessee shall furnish custodial services to the Leased Premises on the Lessee’s 
regular schedule and according to the Lessee’s custodial standards, including 
exterior and interior window washing, restroom cleaning and supply restocking, 
light bulb replacement, and general cleaning of surfaces and floors.   

 
6.3 During the term of this Lease and any extension thereof, Lessee shall exercise 

reasonable care to avoid damaging the Premises.  Lessee will quit the Premises in 
a condition at least as good as when received, normal wear and tear excepted.  In 
the event Lessee fails to repair any damage caused by its employees or agents, 
Lessor shall give Lessee notice to do such acts as are reasonably required to so 
maintain the Premises and/or repair damage. In the event Lessee fails to 
commence such work within ten (10) business days of notice and to diligently 
prosecute it to completion, then Lessor shall have the right, at its option and in 
addition to all other remedies, to do such acts and expend such funds to maintain 
the Premises and to invoice Lessee for costs incurred. Lessor shall have no 
liability to Lessee for any damage, inconvenience or interference with the use of 
the Premises by Lessee as a result of performing any such work. 

 
6.4 No representation as to the condition or the repair of the Premises or any 

attachments thereto have been expressed by the Lessor, Lessee having made its 
own inspection and having accepted the Premises in their present condition.   

 
7.0 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
 

Lessor and Lessee do each herewith and hereby release and relieve the other from 
responsibility for, and waive their entire claim of recovery for, any loss or damage to the 
real or personal property of either located anywhere in the Premises, arising out of or 
incident to the occurrence of any of the perils which are covered by any insurance policy 
obtained by Lessee or Lessor. Each party shall obtain any special endorsements, if 
required by its insurer, to evidence compliance with the aforementioned waiver. 

 
8.0 LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 

A. Insurance Term 
 
The Lessee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the Lessee’s operation and use of the leased Premises. 
 

B. No Limitation 
 
Lessee’s maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement shall not be construed to limit 
the liability of the Lessee to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the 
Lessor’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 
 

C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 

Agenda Packet p. 163 of 178



Lessee shall obtain insurance of the types and coverage described below: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover premises and contractual 
liability.  The Lessor shall be named as additional an insured on Lessee’s Commercial 
General Liability insurance policy using ISO Additional Insured-Managers or Lessors of 
Premises Form CG 20 11 or a substitute endorsement providing at least as broad 
coverage. 

 
2. Property insurance shall be written on an all risk basis. 

 
D.  Minimum Amounts of Insurance 

 
Lessee shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

 
1. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 

2. Property insurance shall be written covering the full value of Lessee’s property and 
improvements with no coinsurance provisions. 

 
E. Other Insurance Provisions 

 
The Lessee’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy or policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the Lessor.  Any Insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the Lessor shall be excess of the 
Lessee’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 

F.  Acceptability of Insurers 
 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
 

G. Verification of Coverage 
 
Lessee shall furnish the Lessor with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, 
evidencing the insurance requirements of the Lessee. 
 

H. Waiver of Subrogation 
 
Lessee and Lessor hereby release and discharge each other from all claims, losses and liabilities 
arising from or caused by any hazard covered by property insurance on or in connection with the 
premises or said building.  This release shall apply only to the extent that such claim, loss or 
liability is covered by insurance. 
 

I. Lessor’s Property Insurance 
 

Agenda Packet p. 164 of 178



Lessor shall purchase and maintain during the term of the lease all-risk property insurance 
covering the Building for its full replacement value without any coinsurance provisions. 
 

J. Notice of Cancellation 
 
The Lessee shall provide the Lessor with written notice of any policy cancellation within two 
business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 

K. Failure to Maintain Insurance 
 
Failure on the part of the Lessee to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material 
breach of lease, upon which the Lessor may, after giving five business days notice to the Lessee 
to correct the breach, terminate the Lease or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance 
and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid 
to the Lessor on demand. 

L. Lessor Full Availability of Lessee Limits 
 

If the Lessee maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the Lessor shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability 
maintained by the Lessee, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by the Lessee are 
greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to 
the Lessor evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Lessee. 
 
Lessor will maintain fire insurance on the building but not on the contents owned by Lessee. 
Insurance of the contents owned or used by Lessee shall be the sole responsibility of Lessee.  

 
9.0 ALTERATIONS OR IMPROVEMENTS 
 

9.1 Prior to July 1, 2016, Lessor shall repair, replace or repaint exterior doors where rust 
is showing, and remove unused items attached to the side of the building. Lessor will 
also replace the window with the blown seal.  

9.2 Lessee shall receive from Lessor a tenant improvement allowance of up to forty 
thousand one hundred and eighty dollars ($40,180) for Lessee’s work as described in 
paragraph 9.6 below.  Lessee shall be reimbursed the allowance within 10 days 
following completion of the work and submission of receipts to Lessor.  

9.3 Lessee shall be responsible for installation of all tenant improvement work including 
planning and design, construction contracting and build-out, and permit issuance by 
Lessee’s contractor.  Lessor reserves the right to approve the Lessee’s contractor(s), 
but shall not unreasonably withhold approval.  

9.4  Lessee shall not make further alterations, additions, renovations or improvements in 
or to the Premises without first obtaining the written consent of Lessor.  All 
alterations, additions, renovations and improvements which shall be made shall be at 
the sole cost and expense of Lessee. 

9.5  Lessee further agrees to indemnify and hold Lessor and the Premises free and 
harmless from, and against, any and all damages, injuries, losses, liens, cost or 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred, claimed or arising out of said work 
performed in accordance with this Section.  

Agenda Packet p. 165 of 178



9.6 Tenant Improvements may include: Reconfigure the space by relocating, adding and 
removing walls – the intent being to retain as many existing walls as possible to 
mitigate expenses; relocate doors, electrical and HVAC vents as required; install new 
carpet; interior painting; repaint exterior (Lessor to approve paint color prior to 
painting); remove “popcorn” from ceilings; extend HVAC to front two (2) rooms; 
relocate kitchen per approved floor plan; install signs (must meet sign code); 
install/relocate lighting; make other improvements to accommodate the redesign 
necessary to meet the needs of a music studio.  

 
10.0 DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 
 

In the event that any of the buildings on the Premises are substantially or wholly 
destroyed or damaged by fire, earthquake, or other casualty, it shall be optional with 
Lessor to repair or rebuild the same, and in the meantime the rent shall be abated in the 
same proportion as the untenantable portion of the Premises bears to the whole Premises. 
Unless Lessor within sixty (60) days after the happening of any such damage or casualty 
shall notify Lessee of its election to restore said Premises or Building, this Lease shall 
thereupon terminate.  If Lessor or Lessee does not terminate this Lease, it shall remain in 
full force and effect. Lessor shall not be required to repair or restore any damage or injury 
nor replace any equipment, inventory, fixtures or other personal property of Lessee or 
others located on the Premises. Any proceeds payable to Lessor from insurance policies 
carried by Lessor and covering the Premises or the Building shall be the sole and 
exclusive property of Lessor. 

 
11.0 ACCIDENTS AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 

11.1 Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Lessor from and against 
any and all suits, actions, damages, claims, liability, and expense in connection 
with loss of life, bodily or personal injury, or property damage arising from or out 
of any occurrence in, upon, at or from the Premises, or the occupancy or use by 
Lessee of the Premises or any part thereof, or occasioned wholly or in part by any 
act or omission of the Lessee, its agents, contractors, employees, servants, 
invitees, licensees, or concessionaires. The foregoing indemnity shall apply only 
to the extent that any matter with respect to which indemnity is sought is not 
caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Lessor or its employees or 
agents. 

 
11.2 Lessor shall not be responsible or liable at any time for any loss or damage to 

Lessee’s personal property or to Lessee’s business, including any loss or damage 
to either the person or property of Lessee that may be occasioned by or through 
the acts or omissions of persons occupying adjacent, connecting, or adjoining 
space. Lessee shall store its property in and shall use and enjoy the Premises and 
all other portions of the Building and improvements at its own risk, and hereby 
releases Lessor, to the full extent permitted by law, from all claims of every kind 
resulting in loss of life, personal or bodily injury, or property damage, except as 
otherwise set forth in this Lease. 

 

Agenda Packet p. 166 of 178



12.0 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

Lessor and Lessee shall comply fully with all federal and state statutes and city 
ordinances now or hereafter in force in respect to the Premises and Lessee’s activities 
therein. Lessee warrants and represents to Lessor that Lessee shall use the Premises only 
for lawful purposes. 

 
13.0 ACCESS 
 

Lessor shall have the right to inspect the Premises at all reasonable times and enter the 
same for purposes of cleaning, repairing, altering, improving the Premises.  Any access 
directly related to Lessor’s maintenance obligations, or any emergent situations requiring 
immediate access, Lessor shall provide a minimum twenty-four (24) hours notice prior to 
any inspection of the premises.  Lessor’s access to the Premises under this section shall 
not unreasonably disturb Lessee.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with keys and security 
codes needed to access the building. Lessor shall have the right to show the Premises to 
prospective Lessees and to maintain “For Rent” signs in a conspicuous place on or about 
the Premises three months prior to the expiration of the term of this Lease. 

 
14.0 SIGNS OR ADVERTISING 
 

Lessee may place signage on the premises and on the building façade/canopy subject to 
Lessor’s approval, which approval shall not unreasonably withheld. Any proposed 
signage must be in compliance with the Bonney Lake Municipal Sign Code and 
otherwise subject to Lessee’s sole satisfaction on size, location, fabrication and design. 
All signage must be maintained so that it is readable and in a good state of repair.  Lessee 
will remove signage specific to Lessee’s name or business at the termination of the 
tenancy herein created and repair any damage or injury to the Premises or the Building 
caused thereby.  

 
15.0 WASTE AND UNLAWFUL USE 
 

Lessor and Lessee will not commit or suffer any waste upon the Premises, nor shall 
Lessor or Lessee disturb the quiet enjoyment of any other occupants of the Building by 
making or suffering any nuisance, undue or unseemly noise, or otherwise, and will not do 
or permit to be done in or about the Premises anything which is illegal or unlawful, or 
which will be dangerous to life or limb, or which will increase any insurance rate upon 
the Premises or the Building. 

 

Agenda Packet p. 167 of 178



16.0 SUCCESSORS 
 

All the covenants, agreements, terms and conditions contained in this Lease shall apply to 
and be binding upon Lessor and Lessee and their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, marital communities and assigns. Any assignment or 
subletting of the Premises or any interest in this Lease shall not relieve Lessee of primary 
responsibility for the performance of the terms and payment of the sums to be performed 
or paid by Lessee hereunder, unless otherwise agreed by Lessor. 

 
17.0 TAXES 
 

Lessee shall pay before delinquency any and all taxes, assessments, license fees and 
public charges levied, assessed or imposed and which shall become payable during the 
term of this Lease upon Lessee’s fixtures, furniture and personal property installed or 
located in the Premises. 
 
Lessor shall be responsible for remitting the leasehold excise tax out of the Rent 
collected. 

 
18.0 COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
 

If, by reason of any default or breach hereunder by Lessor or by Lessee, it becomes 
necessary to institute suit, the substantially prevailing party in such suit shall be entitled 
to recover, as part of any judgment, such amount as the court shall determine reasonable 
as attorneys’ fees for the prevailing party in such suit, together with taxable costs. 

 
19.0 NONWAIVER OF BREACH 
 

The failure of Lessor to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and 
agreements of this Lease or to exercise any option herein conferred in any one or more 
instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of any such or of any 
other covenant or agreement, but the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
20.0 REMOVAL OF PROPERTY 
 

In the event of any entry in, or taking possession of, the Premises upon the termination of 
this Lease, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to remove from the 
Premises all personal property located therein, and may store the same in any place 
selected by Lessor, including but not limited to a public warehouse, at the expense and 
risk of the owners thereof, with the right to sell such stored property, without notice to 
Lessee, after it has been stored for a period of thirty (30) days or more. The proceeds of 
such sale shall be applied first to the cost of such sale, second to the payment of the 
charges for storage, if any, and third to the payment of any other sums of money which 
may then be due from Lessee to Lessor under any of the terms hereof, with the balance, if 
any, to be paid to Lessee. 

 

Agenda Packet p. 168 of 178



21.0 ASSIGNMENT 
 

21.1 Lessee shall not transfer, assign, mortgage, or hypothecate this Lease, in whole or 
in part, or permit the use of the Premises by any person or persons other than 
Lessee, or sublet the Premises, or any part thereof, without the prior written 
consent of Lessor in each instance. Such prohibition against assigning or 
subletting shall include any assignment or subletting by operation of law. Any 
transfer of this Lease from the Lessee by merger, consolidation, or transfer of 
assets shall constitute an assignment for purposes of this Lease.  

 
21.2 Any assignment or subletting without Lessor’s consent shall be void, and shall 

constitute a default hereunder which, at the option of Lessor, shall result in the 
termination of this Lease or exercise of Lessor’s other remedies hereunder. 
Consent to any assignment or subletting shall not operate as a waiver of the 
necessity for consent to any subsequent assignment or subletting, and the terms of 
such consent shall be binding upon any person holding by, under, or through 
Lessee. 

 
21.3 If this Lease is assigned or if the Premises or any portion thereof are sublet or 

occupied by any person other than Lessee, Lessor may collect rent and other 
charges from such assignee or other party and apply the amount collected to the 
rent and other charges reserved hereunder, but such collection shall not constitute 
consent or waiver of the necessity of consent to such assignment, subleasing, or 
other transfer, nor shall such collection constitute the recognition of such 
assignee, sublessee, or other party as Lessee hereunder or a release of Lessee from 
the further performance of all of the covenants and obligations of Lessee herein 
contained.  

 
22.0 NOTICES 
 

All notices, statements, demands, requests, consents, approvals, authorization, offers, 
agreements, appointments, or designations under this Lease by either party to the other 
shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party if sent 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

 
To Lessee, addressed to Lessee at the Premises, and also to Daniel and Brittany Bennett, 
7228 Rebecca Ave SE, Auburn, WA  98092. 

 
To Lessor, addressed to Lessor at the City of Bonney Lake Justice and Municipal Center, 
9002 Main St E, Bonney Lake, WA, 98391, or to such other place as Lessor may from 
time to time designate by notice to Lessee. 
 
Except where applicable law requires delivery through other methods, notices shall also 
be deemed sufficiently given if sent by e-mail or facsimile and placed in the U.S. Mail, 
first class, postage prepaid, on the same day. 

 
23.0 BREACH BY LESSEE 

Agenda Packet p. 169 of 178



 
In the event that the Lessee defaults in the performance of any of the terms, provisions, 
covenants and agreements to be kept, observed and performed on the Lessee’s part, and 
such default is not corrected within thirty (30) days after the receipt of notice thereof 
from the Lessor, or such longer period as may be reasonable under the circumstances 
provided that Lessee is making reasonable efforts to cure the breach; or if the Lessee 
shall abandon, desert, vacate or remove from the Premises; then, in such event, the 
Lessor, at its option at any time thereafter, may terminate this Lease together with all of 
the estate, right, and title thereby granted to or vested in the Lessee by giving twenty (20) 
days notice in writing of such election, by certified mail addressed to the Lessee at the 
address specified in this Lease, and at the expiration of such (20) day period, this Lease 
and all of the estate, right, title and interest thereby granted to or vested in the Lessee 
shall then cease and terminate, and the Lessor may re-enter said premises using such 
force as may be required. Notwithstanding such re-entry by the Lessor and anything to 
the contrary in this agreement, the liability of the Lessee for the rent provided for herein 
shall not be extinguished for the balance of the term of this Lease.  

 
24.0 VACATING OF PREMISES 
 

Upon termination of this Lease, Lessee shall return the Premises in good order and 
condition, except for normal wear and tear. On or before the date of termination, Lessee 
shall have removed all furniture, equipment, supplies, and other materials owned and 
controlled by Lessee. At the request of Lessor, Lessee shall remove at its sole expense 
any improvements, additions, fixtures or alterations made by Lessee to the Premises 
which the Lessor has not selected for remaining with the property. 

 
25.0 PARKING. 
 
 Lessor grants to Lessee and Lessee’s employees, guests, members, licensees and invitees, 

a license to use twelve (12) dedicated parking spaces and eight (8) shared spaces in the 
parking lot connected with the Premises for parking motor vehicles during the Lessee’s 
business hours during the term of this Lease.  The location of the parking stalls is shown 
on the attached Exhibit C.  Lessee shall take reasonable measures to ensure that its 
members and guests observe all State and City regulations with regard to parking, and do 
not store nuisance or junk vehicles on the Property.  

 
26.0 MISCELLANEOUS 
 

26.1 The paragraph and section headings hereof are for convenience only and shall not 
be used to expand or interpret the meaning of any part of this Lease. 

 
26.2 Time is of the essence hereof. 

 
26.3 If any portion of this Lease shall be deemed void, illegal or unenforceable, the 

balance of this Lease shall not be affected thereby. 
 
26.4 This Lease shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Washington. 

Agenda Packet p. 170 of 178



 
26.5 The parties agree that the Superior Court of the State of Washington for Pierce 

County shall have sole jurisdiction over any question, claim, loss or injury arising 
hereunder. 

 
26.6 Lessee acknowledges that except as expressly set forth in this Lease, neither 

Lessor nor any other person has made any representation or warranty with respect 
to the Premises. Specifically, but not in limitation of the foregoing, no 
representation has been made or relied on with respect to the suitability of the 
Premises for the conduct of Lessee’s business. 

 
26.7 Lessor does not by this Lease, in any way or for any purpose, become a partner or 

joint venture of Lessee in the conduct of its business or otherwise. 
 
26.8 Lessor and Lessee shall be excused for the period of any delay in the performance 

of any obligations hereunder when prevented from so doing by cause or causes 
beyond Lessor’s or Lessee’s control, including labor disputes, civil commotion, 
war, governmental regulations or controls, fire or other casualty, inability to 
obtain any material or service, or acts of God. 

 
26.9 This Lease and the Exhibits, Riders, and/or Addenda, if any, attached hereto, 

constitute the entire agreement between the parties. All Exhibits, Riders, or 
Addenda mentioned in this Lease are incorporated herein by reference. Any 
guaranty attached hereto is an integral part of this Lease and constitutes 
consideration given to Lessor to enter into this Lease. Any prior conversations or 
writings are merged herein and extinguished. No subsequent amendment to this 
Lease shall be binding upon Lessor or Lessee unless reduced to writing and 
signed. Submission of this Lease for examination does not constitute an option for 
the Premises and becomes effective as a lease only upon approval of this Lease by 
the Bonney Lake City Council.  If any provision contained in a Rider or Addenda 
is inconsistent with a provision in the body of this Lease, the provision contained 
in said Rider or Addenda shall control. The captions and paragraph number 
appearing herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and are not intended 
to define, limit, construe, or describe the scope or intent of any paragraph. 

 
26.10 Lessor and Lessee shall comply with the requirements of State and Federal 

regulations that prohibit discrimination based on sex, race, national origin, age, 
and/or disability.  

 
26.11 Each of the parties represents and warrants that there are no claims for brokerage 

commissions or finder’s fees in connection with the execution of this Lease and 
agrees to indemnify the other against, and hold it harmless from, all liabilities 
arising from any such claim (including, without limitation, the cost of counsel 
fees in connection therewith). 

 

Agenda Packet p. 171 of 178



26.12 Lessee shall make available to Lessor such records as may be requested by Lessor 
to monitor compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to a 
description of improvements or investments made. 

 
26.14 Lessee shall not allow smoking or any tobacco products inside the Premises or 

within twenty-five (25) feet of any doorway.    
 

27.0 AGENCY/BROKERAGE DISCLOSURES AND REPRESENTATIONS 
 

27.1 Agency Disclosure.  At the signing of this Lease, Lessor is represented by Steve 
Dorenbush/Coldwell Banker Offenbecher (the “Lessor’s Broker”).   

27.2 Commission Agreement.  Lessor shall pay commissions according to the existing 
agreement between Lessor and Lessor’s Broker. 

27.3  Representation. Lessor’s broke has made no representations or warranties 
concerning the premises, the meaning of the terms and conditions of this Lease, 
Lessor’s or Lessee’s financial standing, zoning, compliance of the premises with 
applicable laws, service or capacity of utilities, operating costs, or hazardous 
materials.  Lessor and Lessee have each had the opportunity to seek independent 
legal advice on these and other matters arising under this Lease. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties subscribe their names. 
 
Bennett Music Studios, LLC   CITY OF BONNEY LAKE 
 
        
By:              
       Neil Johnson, Jr., Mayor 
Title:       
       
Date:       

Agenda Packet p. 172 of 178



 
STATE OF   ) 
    ) ss. 
County of   ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________________, 2013 before me personally appeared 
_____________________ and said person(s) acknowledged that __he signed this instrument, and 
on oath stated that ___he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the 
_______________________________ of the ________________________________________ to 
be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year first above written. 
 
              
      Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, 
      Residing at       
      My commission expires     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Pierce  ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________________, 2013 before me personally appeared Neil 
Johnson, Jr. and said person(s) acknowledged that he signed this instrument, and on oath stated 
that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Mayor of the City of 
Bonney Lake to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in 
the instrument. 
 
 In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year first above written. 
 
 
             
      Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, 
      Residing at       
      My commission expires   
  
 

  

Agenda Packet p. 173 of 178



 
Exhibit A 
 
Tax Parcel Number:  
 
Common Street Address: 8720 Main Street E, Bonney Lake, WA  
 
Section 33 Township 20 Range 05 Quarter 23 MCDONALD FRUIT TRACTS: MCDONALD 
FRUIT TRACTS S 100 FT OF W 1/2 OF TR 22 ITEM 1 
 
Situated in Pierce County, Washington. 
 
Having the Pierce County tax parcel number 5640001380 
 

Agenda Packet p. 174 of 178



EXHIBIT B 
SKETCH OF PREMISES 

 

 
 

Agenda Packet p. 175 of 178



EXHIBIT C 
PARKING AREA 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 176 of 178



City of Bonney Lake 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 

Department / Staff Member: Meeting/Workshop Date: Agenda Bill Number: 

Admin Srvcs/Edvalson  17 May 2016 AB16-75 
Agenda Item Type: Ordinance/Resolution Number: Councilmember Sponsor: 

Motion N/A Deputy Mayor McKibbin 
 

Agenda Subject:   Appointing Voting Delegates to the 2016 AWC Annual Conference Business Meeting 
 

Full Title/Motion:  
A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Appointing 
Three City Officials as Voting Delegates to Represent the City of Bonney Lake at the 2016 Association of 
Washington Cities Annual Conference Business Meeting to Be Held in Everett, WA.  
 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  Appoint three voting delegates to represent the City. 
 

Background Summary:  Each City participating in the AWC Annual Conference Business Meeting can 
appoint up to three voting delegates, elected officials or staff, to represent the City’s interests at the 
business meeting.  The City Council is asked to confirm up to three appointments by motion at their next 
regular meeting (5/24/16). 
 
Attachments:  
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance 

    
Budget Explanation:  None. 
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee: 

 
None. Approvals:  Yes 

 

No 

Chair/Councilmember   
 

 
     

Committee Date:   Councilmember   
 

 
     

Councilmember   
 

 
Forwarded to:  Consent Agenda:  Yes    No 

Commission/Board Review:  
Hearing Examiner Review:  
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  05/17/16 Public Hearing Date(s):  
Meeting Date(s):  05/24/16 Tabled to:  
 

APPROVALS 
Director:  HTE Mayor:  NHJ Date Reviewed by 

City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

N/A 
  
 

 

Agenda Packet p. 177 of 178



Agenda Packet p. 178 of 178


	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	AGENDA
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	A. Flag Salute
	B. Roll Call:  Deputy Mayor Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, Councilmember Dan Swatman, and Councilmember Tom Watson.
	C. Agenda Modifications:
	D. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:
	1. Announcements: None.
	2. Appointments: None.
	3. Presentations:
	AB16-67 Agenda Bill - Stormwater Art Contest 2016.pdf
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	Budget Balance
	Required Expenditure
	Current Balance
	Budget Amount
	Fund Source 

	AB16-70 Complete.pdf
	AB16-70 Fennel Creek Sewer Lift Station ARA Formation.pdf
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	Budget Balance
	Required Expenditure
	Current Balance
	Budget Amount


	2016-05-03_CouncilWkshpMinutes.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
	MINUTES
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”



	2016-05-10_CouncilMtg-Minutest.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	MINUTES
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	A. Flag Salute: Deputy Mayor McKibbin led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.
	B. Roll Call: Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the roll. In addition to Deputy Mayor McKibbin, elected officials attending were Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis...
	C. Agenda Modifications: None.
	D. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:
	1. Announcements: None.
	2. Appointments: None.
	3. Presentations: None.

	AB16-68 Complete.pdf
	AB16-68 Council Meeting Time
	D16-68 Council Meeting Time Change
	2.04.120 Council workshops.


	AB16-69 Complete.pdf
	AB16-69 Committee Meeting Time Change
	Resolution 2531 Committee Meeting Time Change

	AB16-78 Complete Packet.pdf
	AB16-78 Authorize 186th Corridor Project Award
	Res 2538 - Award Contract 186th Corridor Improvements
	contract
	186th Corridor Improv Bid Results
	186th Map

	AB16-73 Complete.pdf
	AB16-73 Annex Lease to Bennett Music Studios
	Res 2535 Bennett Music Studio Lease old City Hall Annex
	AnnexLease-Bennet Music
	A. Insurance Term
	B. No Limitation
	C. Minimum Scope of Insurance
	D.  Minimum Amounts of Insurance
	E. Other Insurance Provisions
	F.  Acceptability of Insurers
	G. Verification of Coverage
	H. Waiver of Subrogation
	I. Lessor’s Property Insurance
	J. Notice of Cancellation
	K. Failure to Maintain Insurance
	L. Lessor Full Availability of Lessee Limits


	AB16-75 AWC Voting Delegates.pdf
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	Budget Balance
	Required Expenditure
	Current Balance
	Budget Amount




